
  

 

 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

DATE & TIME:  Friday, June 15, 2018, 8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
 
LOCATION:   City of El Cerrito, Council Chambers 

                          10890 San Pablo Avenue (at Manila Ave) 
   El Cerrito, California (Accessible by AC Transit #72, #72M & #72R) 

 
1. Call to Order and Self-Introductions.  (Cecilia Valdez - Chair) 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.  Please fill out a speaker card and hand it to staff. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

3. Minutes of May 25, 2018 Board Meeting. (Attachment; Recommended Action: 
Approve).  

 
4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities. (Attachment; Information Only). 

 
5. Financial Reports.  The reports show the Agency’s revenues and expenses for 

May 2018. (Attachment; Information Only). 
 

6.    Payment of Invoices over $10,000.  In the last month, WCCTAC paid Fehr and  
             Peers $16,679 for work related to the STMP Nexus Study Update. 

 
7. SDRMA Workers’ Compensation Insurance Resolution. WCCTAC contracts with 

the Special District Risk Management Association (SDRMA) for liability and 
workers’ compensation insurance. This insurance covers Board members for 
activities related to WCCTAC. SDRMA is asking its insured organizations to 
approve the attached Resolution if they wish to continue having Board members 
covered. (Attachment, Recommendation: Approve Resolution 18-05) 

 
8. Draft Final Fiscal Year 2019 Work Program, Budget and Dues Resolution. At its 

April 2018 meeting, the WCCTAC Board approved the release to member 
agencies of the draft work program, budget, and dues for Fiscal Year 2019. Staff 
received no comments on these documents and is now bringing them back to 
the Board for final approval.  (Attachments; Recommended Action:  Adopt 
Resolution 18-06).  

 

 

 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

A-1



9. West Contra Costa County Express Bus Implementation Plan: Contract 
Authorization.  At its May 2018 meeting, the WCCTAC Board authorized staff to 
negotiate with Kimley-Horn, the highest ranked team that responded to 
WCCTAC’s RFP for planning and engineering services for the Express Bus 
Implementation Plan. Staff is now requesting that the Board adopt a Resolution 
authorizing the Executive Director to execute a consulting services agreement for 
the proposed scope of work with a not to exceed dollar amount. (Attachment; 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 18-07 authorizing the Executive Director or his 
designee to execute a contract with Kimley-Horn.) 
 

10. Request for Proposals (RFP) for Audit Services.  WCCTAC has used Maze and 
Associates as its fiscal auditor since 1993. In order to adhere to best practices and 
at the suggestion of the WCCTAC Board, staff is seeking other qualified auditors to 
provide this service, beginning with the fiscal year 2018 audit.  Maze and 
Associates will not be prohibited from submitting a proposal. (Attachment; 
Recommendation: Authorize Executive Director to issue the attached RFP).  

 
              REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
11. Richmond Ferry - Service Details. The Richmond Ferry is expected to begin 

running in late October, 2018. To prepare, WETA is developing a service schedule, 
fares, and a marketing plan. The agreement between WETA and CCTA provides for 
Measure J funds to be used for ferry service and also requires WETA to work with 
WCCTAC and CCTA on service details prior to start-up. The Board will receive a 
status report on the ferry and is also being asked to concur with certain proposed 
service details. (WETA Staff; Attachment; Recommendation: Receive Presentation, 
Consider Proposed Service Details, and Forward a Letter to CCTA) 

 
12. Proposed Central Avenue Underpass Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements.  

Caltrans plans to submit an Active Transportation Program grant application to 
construct enhanced pedestrian and bicycle improvements on Central Avenue 
under the I-80 overpass.  The proposed project is closely coordinated with the 
roadway projects currently managed by CCTA.  Caltrans staff will provide an 
overview the proposed project. (Caltrans Staff; Attachment none; Recommended 
Action:  Receive presentation and consider authorizing the Executive Director to 
send a letter of support to accompany Caltrans’ grant application.) 
 

13. San Pablo Ave Complete Street Plan. The Contra Costa Board of Supervisors 
recently voted to approve a plan for a complete streets project from Lone Tree 
Point in Rodeo to the Carquinez Bridge in Crockett. The project will include a 
combination of on-street bicycle lanes, separated Class 1 bicycle and pedestrian 
paths, lane reductions, middle turn lanes, and other improvements. WCCTAC 
provided $60,000 in a Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) grant in 2014 
to support the plan and staff served on the project’s TAC. Contra Costa County 
staff will present the details of the project and plans for future implementation. 
(County Staff; No Attachment; Recommended Action: Information only)  

A-2



             STANDING ITEMS 
 

14. Board and Staff Comments. 
a.    Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234  

          Requirement), and Announcements 
b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Abelson & Butt) 
c.    Executive Director’s Report 

 
15. General Information Items. 

a. Letter to CCTA Executive Director with May 25, 2018 Summary of Board     
          Actions 

b.  Acronym List 
 

16.    Adjourn.  Next meeting is:  July 27, 2018 @ 8:00 a.m.  
                    in the El Cerrito City Hall Council Chambers, located   

                   at 10890 San Pablo Avenue, El Cerrito  
 

 

 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the 
agenda and/or agenda packet materials in an alternative format, please contact Valerie 
Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior to the meeting. 

 If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, 
please call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make 
arrangements. 

 Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed 
at WCCTAC’s offices. 

 Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be 
attendees susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on 
silent mode during the meeting. 

 A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 

A-3





West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes:  May 25, 2018 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Janet Abelson, Chair (El Cerrito); Cecilia Valdez, Vice-Chair (San 
Pablo); Roy Swearingen (Pinole); Chris Peeples (AC Transit); Aleida Chavez (WestCat); Ada 
Recinos (Richmond); Chris Kelly (Hercules); Eduardo Martinez (Richmond); Tom Butt 
(Richmond)) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Valerie Jenkins, Coire Reilly, Kris Kokotaylo 
(Legal Counsel) 
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order:  8:00am 
  
Meeting Adjourned: 9:31am 
 
Public Comment: N/A 
 
Consent Calendar: Motion by Director Peeples seconded by Director Abelson (items #3-7 
& #9-10);   
Item #3. Minutes of April 27, 2018 Board Meeting      
Item #4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities  
Item #5. Financial Reports of expenses from April 2018  
Item #6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. WCCTAC paid Fehr and Peers $10,334.63 for   
                work related to the STMP Nexus Study Update  
Item #7. Approved FY 19 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation   
                for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
Item #9.  Approved WCCTAC Concurrence for an Amendment to the 2016 Measure J  
                 Strategic Plan regarding expansion of a WestCAT bus facility 
Item #10. Authorized Express Bus Implementation Plan: Consultant Selection 
 
Item #8 was pulled by Director Swearingen.  Director Swearingen asked why there was a 
request for this funding swap.  Hisham Naomi from CCTA staff explained that the shortfall 
on the I-80/San Pablo Dam Road project was due to cost over-runs and that there was an 
immediate need for additional funds.  He noted that the I-80/Central Project, from which 
the Measure J funds would be borrowed, is on a delivery schedule that will allow it to wait 
until CCTA allocates 2020 STIP funds.  
 
Motion by Director Martinez to accept Item #8; seconded by Director Butt. Motion passed. 
 
 
 
 

3-1



 
 

 
 

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item #11  
Revised Terms of Compensation for 
Executive Director 

Motion by Director Peeples seconded by Director 
Abelson to accept revised terms of compensation 
for WCCTAC Executive Director 
Motion passed 
Yes-Abelson, Valdez, Kelly, Recinos, Butt, 
Peeples, Martinez, Chavez, Swearingen 
No- N/A 
Abstention-N/A 

Item #12 
Rumrill Blvd Complete Streets Project 

Information Only 
Update given by Amanda Booth - City of San 
Pablo Staff regarding the Rumrill Blvd Complete 
Streets Project. 

Item #12 
Transit Agency Bus Fleets and Zero Emission 
Vehicles 

Information Only 
Presentation given by AC Transit regarding their 
zero-emission bus fleet and changes to the fleet 
that will reduce pollutants and greenhouse 
emissions. WestCat (Charley Anderson) also 
provided information about the status of 
WestCat bus fleet. 

Item #13 
Bike to Work Day Report 

Information Only 
Coire Reily (WCCTAC TDM Manager) gave 
presentation regarding Bike to Work Day 2018 

3-2



 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE:  June 15, 2018 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities  

 

WCCTAC Receives APA Planning Award  
On the evening of June 1, 2018, WCCTAC Board Chair, 
Cecilia Valdez, and Executive Director, John Nemeth, 
attended an awards gala at the San Francisco War Memorial 
Veteran’s Building, hosted by the American Planning 
Association’s (APA) Northern California Chapter.   
 
WCCTAC received an award for excellence in transportation 
planning for its West Contra Costa High Capacity Transit 
Study.  The event included brief videos that provided an 
overview of each awardee’s activity.  The video for WCCTAC 
praised our agency for following up on our Study with a 
grant for additional express bus service, a partnership with 
ACTC for improving bus service on San Pablo Avenue, and 
successful advocacy for bus funding for West Contra Costa 
in Regional Measure 3 (RM3).  
 
 
Workshop for Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements along Central Avenue at I-80 

Members of the public and 
representatives of interested agencies 
gathered in El Cerrito on June 8, 2018 for a 
Caltrans-sponsored workshop on potential 
bicycle and pedestrian improvements on 
Central Avenue in the vicinity of Interstate 
80.  Caltrans is gathering public feedback 
and is planning to apply for an Active 
Transportation Program grant in the 
upcoming cycle to fund the 
improvements.  Caltrans staff will make a 
presentation on the current concepts at 
the upcoming WCCTAC Board meeting. 

 

4-1



 

Richmond’s First Mile-Last Mile Study Workshop 
Richmond staff and the city’s consultant, 
Nelson Nygaard, held an open House on 
June 7, 2018, at the Richmond R-Transit 
Center as part of the City’s First Mile/Last 
Mile planning process.  The access to a 
transit stop (“first mile”) and the access 
from a transit stop to a final destination 
(“last mile”) are often critical determinants 
of a person’s ability to use transit or an 
alternative to driving.  Members of the 
public were encouraged to learn about the 
Study and to consider those areas in 
Richmond that may need more attention.  

Getting to and from the new ferry terminal at Ford Point was highlighted as an important 
objectives, especially as it relates to improving bicycle and pedestrian access.  Getting to the 
Richmond BART Station from home or getting from the Richmond BART Station to a workplace 
was also a key Study focus.  The Study is expected to be completed by the end of the year and 
Richmond staff plan to bring it to the WCCTAC Board for input.  

 
Richmond Ferry Marketing Plan  
The San Francisco Water Emergency 
Transportation Authority (WETA) has 
developed a comprehensive marketing plan 
for the opening of the new Richmond Ferry 
Service. The marketing plan was developed 
over the course of two months through a 
collaboration between WETA, CCTA, 
WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa, City of Richmond, 
Rosie the Riveter WWII Home Front National 
Historical Park, and the National Park Service. 
The plan aims to promote the October 2018 
start of the new ferry service between the 
Ford Peninsula in the city of Richmond and the 
San Francisco Ferry Building through print, 
online, and broadcast media and at 
community events. WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa 
will be promoting our Guaranteed Ride Home 
and Try Transit ($15 preloaded Clipper cards 
to incentivize commuters to try transit, such as 
the ferry) programs to potential ferry 
customers. 

 

4-2



 

 
Shared Mobility in West County 
The arena of shared modes of personal 
transportation, such as bicycles (traditional and 
electric) and scooters, is rapidly evolving. 
LimeBike is currently operating a dockless 
bicycle share program in El Cerrito, and 
Richmond is on the verge of implementing a 
docked bicycle share program. In May, 2018, 
the BART Board of Directors accepted a staff 
memo which provides guidelines on developing 
agreements with shared mobility operators at 
local BART stations. WCCTAC staff is monitoring 
these developments and facilitated a discussion with the WCCTAC TAC on June 7, 2018, to help 
enhance regional coordination, information sharing, and guideline development with our 
member agencies as bike share programs grow.  

 
County Approval of Complete Street on San Pablo Avenue in Crockett and Rodeo 
On June 5, 2018, the County Board of Supervisors approved the Feasibility Report for the San 
Pablo Avenue Complete Streets Study from Lone Tree Point in Rodeo to the Carquinez Bridge in 
Crocket. The project includes a combination of on-street bicycle lanes, separated Class 1 bicycle 
and pedestrian paths, lane reductions, middle turn lanes, and other improvements. The 
planning study was funded largely with a PDA planning grant ($300,000), but also included 
$60,000 from a Community Based Transportation Planning (CBTP) grant that was provided by  
WCCTAC.  At the June 15, 2018, WCCTAC Board meeting, Contra Costa County staff will present 
the details of the project and plans for future implementation. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4-3





G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 6

/5
/2

01
8 

6:
50

:4
6 

PM
Pe

ri
od

 0
1 

- 
11

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
18

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
77

2-
00

00
-4

99
99

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

24
2.

91
-1

,2
42

.9
1

0.
00

-1
,2

42
.9

1
0.

00
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 O
ut

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
24

2.
91

-1
,2

42
.9

1
0.

00
-1

,2
42

.9
1

0.
00

E
xp

en
se

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
24

2.
91

-1
,2

42
.9

1
0.

00
-1

,2
42

.9
1

0.
00

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

24
2.

91
-1

,2
42

.9
1

0.
00

-1
,2

42
.9

1
0.

00

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

77
0-

77
00

-4
10

00
Sa

la
ry

0.
00

40
9,

94
8.

00
40

9,
94

8.
00

27
0,

07
1.

86
13

9,
87

6.
14

0.
00

13
9,

87
6.

14
34

.1
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
12

00
PE

R
S 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

47
,5

99
.8

2
-4

7,
59

9.
82

0.
00

-4
7,

59
9.

82
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

13
10

M
ed

ic
al

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
50

,4
81

.6
3

-5
0,

48
1.

63
0.

00
-5

0,
48

1.
63

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
13

11
R

et
ir

ee
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
61

0.
76

-1
,6

10
.7

6
0.

00
-1

,6
10

.7
6

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
14

00
D

en
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

74
7.

72
-3

,7
47

.7
2

0.
00

-3
,7

47
.7

2
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

15
00

V
is

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
61

0.
00

-3
,6

10
.0

0
0.

00
-3

,6
10

.0
0

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
18

00
L

T
D

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

51
1.

72
-2

,5
11

.7
2

0.
00

-2
,5

11
.7

2
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
00

M
ed

ic
ar

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

89
4.

03
-3

,8
94

.0
3

0.
00

-3
,8

94
.0

3
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
01

O
th

er
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

s
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

16
8.

50
-4

,1
68

.5
0

0.
00

-4
,1

68
.5

0
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
04

L
if

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

71
3.

22
-7

13
.2

2
0.

00
-7

13
.2

2
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
11

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e

0.
00

4,
38

8.
00

4,
38

8.
00

3,
64

1.
38

74
6.

62
0.

00
74

6.
62

17
.0

2
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
12

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
19

0.
00

-1
,1

90
.0

0
0.

00
-1

,1
90

.0
0

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
0.

00
41

4,
33

6.
00

41
4,

33
6.

00
39

3,
24

0.
64

21
,0

95
.3

6
0.

00
21

,0
95

.3
6

5.
09

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
3,

84
7.

59
15

2.
41

0.
00

15
2.

41
3.

81
77

0-
77

00
-4

35
01

Po
st

ag
e

0.
00

2,
20

0.
00

2,
20

0.
00

1,
34

7.
88

85
2.

12
0.

00
85

2.
12

38
.7

3
77

0-
77

00
-4

35
20

C
op

ie
sP

ri
nt

in
gS

hi
pp

in
gX

er
ox

0.
00

3,
80

0.
00

3,
80

0.
00

3,
28

0.
14

51
9.

86
0.

00
51

9.
86

13
.6

8
77

0-
77

00
-4

35
30

O
ff

ic
e 

Fu
rn

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
t

($
50

00
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
10

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

54
,3

00
.0

0
54

,3
00

.0
0

48
,3

95
.8

0
5,

90
4.

20
0.

00
5,

90
4.

20
10

.8
7

77
0-

77
00

-4
39

00
R

en
tB

ui
ld

in
g

0.
00

18
,0

00
.0

0
18

,0
00

.0
0

19
,7

61
.2

7
-1

,7
61

.2
7

0.
00

-1
,7

61
.2

7
-9

.7
8

77
0-

77
00

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

-2
2.

86
10

,0
22

.8
6

0.
00

10
,0

22
.8

6
10

0.
23

77
0-

77
00

-4
43

20
T

ra
ve

lT
ra

in
in

g 
St

af
f

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

3,
57

3.
88

1,
62

6.
12

0.
00

1,
62

6.
12

31
.2

7
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
0.

00
98

,7
50

.0
0

98
,7

50
.0

0
80

,1
83

.7
0

18
,5

66
.3

0
0.

00
18

,5
66

.3
0

18
.8

0

E
xp

en
se

0.
00

51
3,

08
6.

00
51

3,
08

6.
00

47
3,

42
4.

34
39

,6
61

.6
6

0.
00

39
,6

61
.6

6
7.

73
77

00
W

C
C

T
A

C
 O

pe
ra

ti
on

s
0.

00
51

3,
08

6.
00

51
3,

08
6.

00
47

3,
42

4.
34

39
,6

61
.6

6
0.

00
39

,6
61

.6
6

7.
73

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

06
/0

5/
20

18
 -

 0
6:

50
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

5-1



A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
77

2-
77

20
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
0.

00
34

5,
17

5.
00

34
5,

17
5.

00
17

3,
32

9.
96

17
1,

84
5.

04
0.

00
17

1,
84

5.
04

49
.7

8
77

2-
77

20
-4

12
00

PE
R

S 
R

et
ir

em
en

t
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
42

,7
10

.3
6

-4
2,

71
0.

36
0.

00
-4

2,
71

0.
36

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
13

10
M

ed
ic

al
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

39
,0

96
.1

9
-3

9,
09

6.
19

0.
00

-3
9,

09
6.

19
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

14
00

D
en

ta
l I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
91

3.
92

-2
,9

13
.9

2
0.

00
-2

,9
13

.9
2

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
18

00
L

T
D

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

15
9.

95
-1

,1
59

.9
5

0.
00

-1
,1

59
.9

5
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

19
00

M
ed

ic
ar

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

47
3.

65
-2

,4
73

.6
5

0.
00

-2
,4

73
.6

5
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

19
01

O
th

er
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

s
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

16
8.

49
-4

,1
68

.4
9

0.
00

-4
,1

68
.4

9
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

19
04

L
if

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
7.

52
-3

17
.5

2
0.

00
-3

17
.5

2
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

19
11

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e

0.
00

4,
33

8.
00

4,
33

8.
00

3,
64

1.
38

69
6.

62
0.

00
69

6.
62

16
.0

6
Sa

la
ry

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
its

0.
00

34
9,

51
3.

00
34

9,
51

3.
00

26
9,

81
1.

42
79

,7
01

.5
8

0.
00

79
,7

01
.5

8
22

.8
0

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
0.

00
1,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0.

00
84

0.
66

15
9.

34
0.

00
15

9.
34

15
.9

3
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
01

T
D

M
 P

os
ta

ge
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
21

9.
93

-2
19

.9
3

0.
00

-2
19

.9
3

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

02
T

D
M

 P
os

ta
ge

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

10
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
20

C
op

ie
sP

ri
nt

in
gS

hi
pp

in
gX

er
ox

0.
00

12
,6

42
.0

0
12

,6
42

.0
0

5,
78

8.
63

6,
85

3.
37

0.
00

6,
85

3.
37

54
.2

1
77

2-
77

20
-4

36
00

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
0.

00
45

,3
84

.0
0

45
,3

84
.0

0
37

,9
52

.1
6

7,
43

1.
84

0.
00

7,
43

1.
84

16
.3

8
77

2-
77

20
-4

39
00

R
en

tB
ui

ld
in

g
0.

00
24

,2
00

.0
0

24
,2

00
.0

0
19

,5
02

.3
1

4,
69

7.
69

0.
00

4,
69

7.
69

19
.4

1
77

2-
77

20
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

s
0.

00
72

,8
76

.0
0

72
,8

76
.0

0
94

,5
35

.8
8

-2
1,

65
9.

88
0.

00
-2

1,
65

9.
88

-2
9.

72
77

2-
77

20
-4

43
20

T
ra

ve
lT

ra
in

in
g 

St
af

f
0.

00
1,

50
0.

00
1,

50
0.

00
2,

37
5.

87
-8

75
.8

7
0.

00
-8

75
.8

7
-5

8.
39

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

0.
00

15
9,

10
2.

00
15

9,
10

2.
00

16
1,

21
5.

44
-2

,1
13

.4
4

0.
00

-2
,1

13
.4

4
-1

.3
3

E
xp

en
se

0.
00

50
8,

61
5.

00
50

8,
61

5.
00

43
1,

02
6.

86
77

,5
88

.1
4

0.
00

77
,5

88
.1

4
15

.2
5

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
0.

00
50

8,
61

5.
00

50
8,

61
5.

00
43

1,
02

6.
86

77
,5

88
.1

4
0.

00
77

,5
88

.1
4

15
.2

5

77
30

ST
M

P
77

3-
77

30
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

77
3-

77
30

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

22
5,

00
0.

00
22

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

22
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
22

5,
00

0.
00

10
0.

00
77

3-
77

30
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

0.
00

2,
60

0,
00

0.
00

2,
60

0,
00

0.
00

19
3,

03
0.

88
2,

40
6,

96
9.

12
0.

00
2,

40
6,

96
9.

12
92

.5
8

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

0.
00

2,
82

5,
00

0.
00

2,
82

5,
00

0.
00

19
3,

03
0.

88
2,

63
1,

96
9.

12
0.

00
2,

63
1,

96
9.

12
93

.1
7

E
xp

en
se

0.
00

2,
87

5,
00

0.
00

2,
87

5,
00

0.
00

19
3,

03
0.

88
2,

68
1,

96
9.

12
0.

00
2,

68
1,

96
9.

12
93

.2
9

77
30

ST
M

P
0.

00
2,

87
5,

00
0.

00
2,

87
5,

00
0.

00
19

3,
03

0.
88

2,
68

1,
96

9.
12

0.
00

2,
68

1,
96

9.
12

93
.2

9

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
77

4-
77

40
-4

35
00

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

99
.6

0
-9

9.
60

0.
00

-9
9.

60
0.

00
77

4-
77

40
-4

36
00

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

,8
45

.8
8

-4
0,

84
5.

88
0.

00
-4

0,
84

5.
88

0.
00

77
4-

77
40

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
0.

00
68

,0
00

.0
0

68
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
68

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

68
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

0.
00

68
,0

00
.0

0
68

,0
00

.0
0

40
,9

45
.4

8
27

,0
54

.5
2

0.
00

27
,0

54
.5

2
39

.7
9

E
xp

en
se

0.
00

68
,0

00
.0

0
68

,0
00

.0
0

40
,9

45
.4

8
27

,0
54

.5
2

0.
00

27
,0

54
.5

2
39

.7
9

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
0.

00
68

,0
00

.0
0

68
,0

00
.0

0
40

,9
45

.4
8

27
,0

54
.5

2
0.

00
27

,0
54

.5
2

39
.7

9

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
0.

00
0.

00
3,

96
4,

70
1.

00
1,

13
9,

67
0.

47
2,

82
5,

03
0.

53
0.

00
2,

82
5,

03
0.

53
0.

71
25

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

06
/0

5/
20

18
 -

 0
6:

50
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 2

5-2



RESOLUTION NO. 18-05 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF  
THE WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE, 

DECLARING THAT GOVERNING BODY MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS 
SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF PROVIDING WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE FOR 
SAID CERTAIN INDIVIDUALS WHILE PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES   

 
 
WHEREAS, the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 

(“WCCTAC”) utilizes the services of Governing Body Members; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 3363.5 of the California Labor Code provides that a person who 

performs voluntary service for a public agency as designated and authorized by the Governing 
Body of the agency or its designee, shall, upon adoption of a resolution by the Governing Body 
of the agency so declaring, be deemed to be an employee of the agency for the purpose of 
Division 4 of said Labor Code while performing such services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of WCCTAC wishes to continue to extend Workers’ 

Compensation coverage as provided by State law to the following designated categories of 
persons as indicated by a checkmark in the box to the left of the descriptions: 

 

   All Members of the Governing Body of the West Contra Costa Transportation 
Advisory Committee as presently or hereafter constituted 

  and/or 

 All persons performing voluntary services without pay other than meals, 
transportation, lodging or reimbursement for incidental expenses 

 Individuals on Work-study programs 

 Interns 

 Other Volunteers 

 _________________________ 
 [designate] 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that such Members of the 

Governing Body of WCCTAC, including the duly elected or appointed replacements of any 
Governing Body Member and other designated individuals be deemed to be employees of 
WCCTAC for the purpose of Workers’ Compensation coverage as provided in Division 4 of the 
Labor Code while performing such service. However, said Governing Body Members and other 
designated individuals will not be considered an employee of WCCTAC for any purpose other 
than for such Workers’ Compensation coverage, nor grant nor enlarge upon any other right, 
duty, or responsibility of such Governing Body Members or other designated individuals, nor 
allow such persons to claim any other benefits or rights given to paid employees of WCCTAC. 
 

✔ 

7-1



The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the WCCTAC Board at a regular meeting on June 15, 
2018 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

By:       
 Cecilia Valdez, Chair 

Attest: 
 
 
       
John Nemeth, Executive Director 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Kristopher Kokotaylo, General Counsel 
2973467.1  

7-2



 

 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE: 

 

June 15, 2018 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director  

RE: Draft Final Fiscal Year 2019 Work Program, Budget, and Dues Resolution       

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Resolution 18-06: FY 2019 Work Program, Budget, and Member Agency Dues. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On April 27, 2018, the WCCTAC Board approved the subject documents for circulation and 
review by member agencies.  Staff did not receive any comments and the documents remain 
largely unchanged from the drafts, with the exception of some adjustments to the TDM budget. 
 
 
Attachments: 
A: Resolution 18-06 
B: FY 2019 Work Program 
C: FY 2019 Budget 
D: FY 2019 Member Agency Dues Schedule 
 
 

 

8-1





WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

RESOLUTION 18-06 

  

ADOPTION OF FY 2019 WORK PROGRAM, BUDGET, AND MEMBER DUES 

 

WHEREAS, the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (“WCCTAC”) is a 

joint exercise of powers authority formed pursuant to Government Code Section 6500, et. seq. by 

and between the City of El Cerrito, the City of Hercules, the City of Pinole, the City of 

Richmond, the City of San Pablo, Contra Costa County, Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District 

(“AC Transit”), San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit (“BART”), and West Contra Costa 

Transit Authority (“WestCAT”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the WCCTAC Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) authorizes 

WCCTAC to: annually adopt a work program along with a budget setting forth all operational 

expenses, together with an apportionment of expenses allocated to each member agency; make 

and enter into contracts; apply for and accept grants; develop and administer the Transportation 

Demand Management (“TDM”) Program; and act as fiscal agent for the Subregional 

Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (“STMP”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 proposed work program, budget and member agency dues were 

circulated for review by the member agencies, and all comments received were duly noted and 

addressed.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 

WCCTAC adopts the FY 2019 work program, budget, and member agency dues, and as shown 

in the attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the WCCTAC Board at a regular meeting on June 15, 

2018 by the following vote:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

 

By: __________________________  

              Cecilia Valdez, Chair 

 

 

Attest:  

________________________  

John Nemeth, Executive Director  

 

 

Approved as to Form:__________________________  

Kristopher J. Kokotaylo, General Counsel 

8A-1





WCCTAC FISCAL YEAR 2019 
DRAFT FINAL 

WORK PROGRAM 
 
WCCTAC’s activities may be grouped into the following five major areas: Planning and 
Programming (General Operations), Transportation Demand Management (TDM), Sub-
regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP), Other Reimbursable Projects, and 
Office Administration. 

 
Planning and Programming (General Operations) 
This program area relates to WCCTAC’s function as the Regional Transportation Planning 
Committee (RTPC) for West Contra Costa County under Measure J. It also includes 
transportation planning efforts resulting from the agency’s Joint Powers Agency function. 
Activities in this program area are mainly funded with annual member agency contributions 
and, to a lesser extent, Measure J dollars. 
 

1. Program and administer West County’s Measure J projects and programs, including: 
a. Low Income Student Bus Pass Program (Measure J 21b) 
b. Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities (Measure J 15b, 20b) 
c. Sub-regional needs (Measure J 28b) 

 
2. Participate in regional, countywide, sub-regional, and local planning efforts as 

appropriate. In the upcoming fiscal year, staff will be involved in:  
a. Coordination of local senior and disabled transportation, including 

implementation of the West County Measure J Mobility Study. 
b. The San Pablo Avenue Multimodal Corridor Study, in partnership with the Alameda 

County Transportation Commission (ACTC), CCTA, Caltrans and local jurisdictions. 
c. I-80 Smart Corridor (Integrated Corridor Mobility) follow-up, evaluation, and 

TAC meetings. 
d. I-80 Ad Hoc Subcommittee work on HOV lane performance and the Smart Corridor 

Project. 
e. Safe Routes to School Program and Contra Costa County’s Accountable 

Healthy Communities Coordination. 
f. Development of AC Transit Multi-modal Corridor Guidelines. 
g. Hercules Regional Intermodal Transit Center funding identification. 
h. Richmond and Hercules ferry planning, implementation, promotion, and funding 

identification. 
i. I-80 Interchange planning and implementation for San Pablo Dam Rd. and Central 

Ave. 
j. City of Richmond’s 23rd Street Streetscape Improvement Plan. 
k. Complete Streets efforts, such as Rumrill Boulevard, San Pablo Avenue, and 13th 

Street in Richmond. 
l. Bay Trail and other bike path/trail planning and development. 
m. General Plan Updates and local specific plans. 
 
 

8B-1



3. Monitor grant opportunities, inform members about these opportunities, assist with 
grant applications, and facilitate prioritization of West County candidate projects for 
grants. Some examples of grant opportunities in the upcoming fiscal year include 
Active Transportation Program (ATP) grants for pedestrian and bicycle 
improvements, as well as  federal 5310 grants for senior and disabled transportation. 
 

4. Submit an application to MTC’s Program for Arterial System Synchronization (PASS) 
grant for funds to develop corridor-wide signal timing coordination plans for San 
Pablo Avenue. 

 
5. Monitor Action Plan compliance by reviewing General Plans or Amendments, and 

work to advance goals, objectives and actions within the Action Plan. 
 

6. Manage or participate in meetings of the: WCCTAC Board, WCCTAC TAC, I-80 Smart 
Corridor TAC,CCTA Board, CCTA Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (CBPAC), CCTA Administration and Projects Committee (APC), CCTA 
Paratransit Coordinating Committee (PCC), CCTA Technical Coordinating Committee 
(TCC), and the Caltrans District 4 Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 
This program promotes transportation alternatives to the single occupant vehicle by 
encouraging walking, bicycling, transit, carpooling, and vanpooling, and is coordinated with 
the larger countywide 511 Contra Costa Program.  It is funded on a reimbursement basis by 
Measure J and grants from the Air District. In the upcoming fiscal year, the TDM program will: 
 

1. Manage the Commute Incentives Program, which includes: employer outreach and 
programs, tabling at community events, transit incentives, funding for bike racks 
and lockers, funding for EV charging stations, the “Pass 2 Class” student transit 
ticket program. 
 

2. Manage the Countywide Guaranteed Ride Home and Try Transit Programs. 
 

3. Co-lead Bike to Work Day with other regional partners 
 

4. Coordinate with the Regional 511 Rideshare and 511 Contra Costa. 
 

5. Support Local Agency Climate Action plans and other plans and efforts that aim to 
improve access to bicycling, pedestrian facilities, transit, and emerging mobility 
technology such as a shared bicycles, cars, scooters, and autonomous vehicles – 
particularly those that have regional significance.  

 
6. Work with community groups and employers to explore the feasibility of providing 

bicycle repair education classes and bicycle safety awareness to increase bicycling as a 
viable mode of transportation. 

 
7. Participate in the development of a Countywide TDM Strategic Plan. 

8B-2



Sub-regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP) 
WCCTAC acts as the trustee for the developer impact fees collected by the West County cities 
and the unincorporated areas of the County. Under the current program, these funds are to 
be used for work on eleven pre-identified, regionally-benefitting capital projects. In the 
upcoming fiscal year, WCCTAC will: 
 

1. Complete the STMP Nexus Study Update. 
 
2. Collect, administer and track funds and reporting forms; oversee contractual 

agreements; and disburse funds to Board-approved programmed projects. 
 

3. Bring an updated fee schedule to the WCCTAC Board for its consideration. 
 

4. Issue a final call for projects for the current STMP program based on fund balance and 
Board direction. 

 
5. Transition WCCTAC and its member agencies from the current STMP program to an 

updated STMP program.   
 

6. Respond to inquiries from local agencies. 
 
Other Reimbursable Projects 
As a Joint Powers Agency, WCCTAC is able to apply for and receive various grants that 
advance the transportation goals of West Contra Costa. WCCTAC can also serve as a lead 
for certain studies or projects using other agency contributions.  In the upcoming fiscal 
year, WCCTAC will:  
 

1. Initiate the West Contra Costa County Express Bus Implementation Plan, a Caltrans/SB1 
funded endeavor with partners AC Transit and WestCAT.   
 

2. Apply for and manage a Program for System Synchronization (PASS) grant to improve 
signal timing during weekends and off-peak times on San Pablo Avenue. 

 
Office Administration 
WCCTAC’s administration is funded through member dues, a portion of TDM funds, as well as 
other sources. In the upcoming fiscal year the priorities in this category include: 
 

1. Completing Annual Work Program, Budget and Audit. 
 

2. Providing staff development and training opportunities to keep employees skills high 
and to stay aware of industry trends.   

 
3. Maintaining, updating, and expanding content on the WCCTAC website.  

 
4. Developing a Procurement Policy for equipment and services purchased by WCCTAC. 

And formalizing WCCTAC’s Conflict of Interest Code for staff and Directors. 

8B-3





 FY 2018-19 DRAFT Final Budget : SUMMARY 

 Actual                  

FY 2016-17 

 Original            

FY 2017-18 

 Estimated       

FY 2017-18 

 Proposed       

FY 2018-19      
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants (TDM) 551,186         508,615         513,664         555,203         

34111 Member Contribtuions 421,775         455,932         455,932         502,981         

343xx STMP Fees 812,188         2,040,000      925,444         2,531,000      (a)

36102 Interest 14,965           12,000           5,000              -                      

39906 Other - Misc 625,991         293,783         317,531         586,509         (b)

TOTAL REVENUES 2,426,105      3,310,330      2,217,571      4,175,693      

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 763,617         805,123         763,716         815,068         

41911 Liability Insurance 7,888              8,776              7,282              8,088              

Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 771,505         813,899         770,998         823,156         

Professional Services

43600 Professional Services

  Financial Services 32,756           31,000           33,792           34,900           

  IT / VOIP phone 8,855              8,000              7,609              7,550              

  Audit 6,330              7,500              5,800              7,500              

  Attorney Services 19,473           19,500           15,800           19,000           

  Accounting Services 15,086           15,600           7,550              10,500           

  STMP Nexus Study and Strategic Plan 4,430              225,000         130,112         115,458         

  Misc 6,822              -                      2,850              -                      

Total Professional Services 136,751         237,094         91,811           338,260         

 Special Expenses (Project / Program Funding)

44000 Special Dept. Expense

TDM - Incentives / Marketing 115,352         72,876           95,000           130,903         

Misc. STMP Project Funding 2,127,749      2,600,000      196,803         4,311,226      (c)

San Pablo Ave. Corridor Study -                      50,000           -                      50,000           

Student Bus Pass Program 101,589         128,000         125,000         130,682         

Needs Assessment Study (senior/disabled) 75,000           75,000           

Express Bus Implementation Plan 361,827         

High Capacity Transit Study 464,992         -                      101,516         -                      

Ops Contingency 4,976              10,000           -                      10,000           
Total Special Expenses 2,814,658      2,935,876      593,319         4,994,638      

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training/Mileage/Mbrshp 8,852              6,700              7,564              8,000              

Total Travel/Training 8,852              6,700              7,564              8,000              

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies 4,651              5,000              4,926              5,000              

43501 Postage 1,871              2,200              2,097              2,000              

43502 TDM Postage 893                 1,500              250                 1,100              

43520 Printing, Copier Lease 9,887              16,442           10,202           26,300           (d)

43530 Furniture, Equipment 822                 1,250              -                      -                      

43900 Rent/Building 40,696           42,200           41,345           44,250           

Total Office Exp & Supplies 58,820           68,592           58,820           78,650           

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,790,586      4,062,161      1,522,512      6,242,704      
REVENUES - EXPENSES (1,364,481)     (751,831)        695,059         (2,067,011)     

Beginning Fund Balance 2,483,930      

Ending Fund Balance 416,919         

Notes:

(a) STMP revenues are projected to be strong in FY19 and represent a large share of total revenue

(b) These revenues for FY19 include a Caltrans SB1-funded grant and Measure J 20b, 21b, and 28b funds. 

(c) Staff anticipates that WCCTAC will be able to disburse a large amount of STMP funds in FY19

(d) Higher printing costs are related to the TDM program and expectations of program-related priting work

See also the notes in the attached detail sheets by account.

Activity

8C-1



DETAIL: WCCTAC Operations

FY 2018-19 DRAFT Final Budget

 Actual FY 

2016-2017 

 Original FY 

2017-2018 

 Estimated 

2017-2018 

 Proposed 

2018-2019 
 Notes 

REVENUES

34111 Member Contributions 421,775          455,932          455,932          502,979          (a)

36102 Interest - LAIF 207                  -                       -                       -                       

39906 Other - Measure J (20b & 21b) 31,494            40,783            29,000            29,000            (b)

SB1 Grant - staff time 15,000            

TOTAL REVENUES 453,476         496,715         484,932         546,979         

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 370,140          409,948          418,085          443,068          (c)

41911 Liability Insurance 3,944              4,388              3,641              4,000              

Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 374,084         414,336         421,726         447,068         

Professional Services

43600 Professional Services

Financial Services 16,378            16,500            16,896            17,450            

IT / VOIP phone 4,684              4,000              3,950              4,000              

Audit 6,330              7,500              5,800              7,500              

Attorney Services 19,473            18,500            15,200            18,000            

Accounting Sevices 7,477              7,800              3,050              4,500              

Misc 2,889              1,850              

           Total Professional Services 57,231            54,300            46,746            51,450            

Special Department Expenses

44000 Special Dept. Expense

Contingency 4,976              10,000            -                       10,000            (d)

Total Special Department Expenses 4,976              10,000            -                       10,000            

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training/Mileage 5,387              5,200              5,064              5,800              

Total Travel/Training/Mileage 5,387              5,200              5,064              5,800              

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies 3,644              4,000              3,998              4,000              

43501 Postage 1,871              2,200              2,097              2,000              

43520 Printing, Copier 4,537              3,800              3,187              3,800              

43530 Furniture & Equipment 822                  1,250              -                       -                       

43900 Rent/Building 18,664            18,000            19,954            22,250            

Total Office Expense & Supplies 29,538            29,250            29,236            32,050            

TOTAL EXPENSES 471,216         513,086         502,772         546,368         

REVENUES - EXPENSES (17,740)          (16,371)          (17,840)          611                 

Beginning Fund Balance $166,868

Ending Fund Balance $167,479

Reserve - Undesignated $120,000

Reserve - Accumulated Vacation $20,000

Available Balance above Reserve $27,479

Notes:

(a) FY 19 dues are proposed to increase.  

  (b) A portion of Measure J program funds can be used to cover administative expenses.

(c) Includes PERS Unfunded Liability, 3.0% COLA, and potential merit increases

Also includes a shift in total work hours from TDM to WCCTAC ops

(d) Contingency per Board Reserve Policy.

Activity

8C-2



DETAIL: TDM

FY 2018-19 DRAFT Final Budget

 Actual        

2016-2017 

 Original    

2017-2018 

 Estimated 

2017-2018 

 Proposed 

2018-2019 
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants 551,186         508,615         513,664         555,203         (a)

36102 Interest - LAIF -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 551,186         508,615         513,664         555,203         

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 353,477         345,175         295,631         322,000         (b)

41911 Liability Insurance 3,994              4,388              3,641              4,000              

Total Salaries, Benefits, and Insurance 357,471         349,563         299,272         326,000         

Professional Services

43600 Professional Services 

Financial and IT Services 20,549           20,500           20,600           21,000           

Attorney Services -                      1,000              600                 1,000              

Accounting Services 7,609              7,800              4,500              6,000              

  Program-related services 6,474              - 10,000           21,500           (c)

   Other 3,933              - 1,000              

Total Professional Services 28,158           29,300           36,700           49,500           

TDM Program Work

44000 Program Expenses

    Commute Incentives / Marketing 115,352         72,876           95,000           130,903         (c)

Total TDM Program Work 115,352         72,876           95,000           130,903         

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training/Mileage/Membershp 3,465              1,500              2,500              2,200              

Total Travel/Training 3,465              1,500              2,500              2,200              

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies 1,007              1,000              928                 1,000              

43502 TDM Postage 893                 1,500              250                 1,100              

43520 Printing, Copier Lease 5,350              12,642           7,015              22,500           

43900 Rent / Building 22,032           24,200           21,400           22,000           

Total Office Exp & Supplies 29,282           39,342           29,593           46,600           

TOTAL EXPENSES 533,728         492,581         463,065         555,203         

REVENUES - EXPENSES 17,458           16,034           50,599           -                  

Beginning Fund Balance 0

Ending Fund Balance 0

Notes:

(a) More TDM grants funds (TFCA and Measure J) available in the next FY based on CCTA projections

(b) Lower expenditures in the current FY reflect staff turnover in the TDM Program Manager position

Lower budgted salary & benefits reflect a small shift in the allocation of staff time from TDM to WCCTAC Ops 

(c)

Activity

More TDM program funds will be available in the upcoming FY, given larger grant revenues and lower expenses

8C-3



DETAIL: STMP

FY 2018-19 DRAFT Final Budget

  Actual FY 

2016-2017 

  Original FY 

2017-2018 

  Estimated 

2017-2018 

 Proposed 

FY2018-19 
 Note 

REVENUES

34310 County STMP Fees 34,102            40,000           404,856         43,500           

34315 El Cerrito STMP Fees 320,600          1,200,000      75,462           1,185,000      

34320 Hercules STMP Fees 143,949          50,000           172,074         1,000,000      

34325 Pinole STMP Fees 101,531          25,000           35,748           12,500           

34330 184,663          700,000         192,813         250,000         

34335 San Pablo STMP Fees 27,344            25,000           44,490           40,000           

36102 Interest - LAIF 14,758            12,000           5,000              -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 826,946          2,052,000      930,444         2,531,000      (a)

EXPENSES

Salary & Benefits

41000s Salary & Benefits (STMP Admin) 40,000            50,000           50,000           50,000           (b)

Total Salaries and Benefits 40,000            50,000           50,000           50,000           

Funding of STMP Projects

43600 Prof. Services 

Nexus Study and Strategic Plan 4,430              225,000         130,112         115,458         (c)

Other - -                      -                      -                      

Total Prof. Services 225,000         130,112         115,458         

44000 Project Funding -                       -                      -                      -                      

BART - Richmond Intermodal 4,235              - 57                   -                      

Richmond - BART East Side 527,000          -                      -                      -

Hercules - Path to Transit 896,514          196,746         11,226           

Del Norte BART TOD -                       -                      -                      1,000,000      

El Cerrito - Ohlone Greenway -                       -                      300,000         

I-80 San Pablo Dam Road Interchange 700,000          -                      -                      -

Other Miscellaneous Projects - 2,600,000      - 3,000,000      (d)

  Total Project Funding 2,127,749      2,600,000      196,803         4,311,226      

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,167,749      2,875,000      376,915         4,476,684      

REVENUES - EXPENSES (1,340,803)     (823,000)        553,529         (1,945,684)     

Beginning Fund Balance 3,253,697      

Ending Fund Balance 1,308,013      

Notes:

(a) STMP receipts are forecasted to be strong based on local jurisdiction estimates

(b) Expenses are for costs to administer the program up to 2% of project expenses.

(c) Expenses are for a new Nexus Study and Strategic Plan.

(d)

Activity

Specific projects to be funded in the upcoming Fiscal Year can be determined by the Board

8C-4



DETAIL: OTHER REIMBURSABLE

FY 2018-19 DRAFT Final Budget

 Actual FY 

2016-17 

 Original  FY 

2017-18 

 Estimated FY 

2017-2018 

 Proposed FY 

2018-19 
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants

36102 Interest - LAIF
39906 Other Revenue

Student Bus Pass Program Admin, WCCUSD 47,719           68,000           65,000            70,682           (a)

Student Bus Pass Program - J Swett 60,000           60,000           60,000            60,000           (a)

Needs Assement Study (senior/disabled) - 75,000           75,000            

SB1 Express Bus Grant -                      -                      -                      315,000         (b)

SB1 Express Bus Cash Match -                      -                      -                      46,827           (c)

San Pablo Ave. Corridor Study -                      50,000           -                       50,000           (e)

High Capacity Transit Study (28b) 153,415         -                      72,551            -                      (f)

High Capacity Transit Study (BART) 180,000         -                      -                       -                      

High Capacity Transit Study (CCTA) 115,022         -                      11,985            -                      

High Capacity Transit Study (MTC) 38,341           -                      3,995              -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 594,497         253,000         288,531          542,509         

EXPENSES

Special Project Expenses

43600 Professional Services -                      -                      -                      -

Regional Studies/Projects -                      -                      -                       -

Other -                      -                      -                       -

Total Professional Services -                      -                      -                       -                      

44000 Projects

Student Bus Pass Program Admin, WCCUSD 41,589           68,000           65,000            70,682           (a)

Student Bus Pass Program - J Swett 60,000           60,000           60,000            60,000           (a)

Needs Assement Study (senior/disabled) - 75,000           75,000            

SB1 Grant - Express Bus Implemtation Plan -                      -                      -                       361,827         (d)

San Pablo Ave. Corridor Study -                      50,000           -                       50,000           (e)

High Capacity Transit Study 464,992         -                      101,516          -                      (f)

TOTAL EXPENSES 566,581         253,000         301,516          542,509         

REVENUES - EXPENSES 27,916           -                      (12,985)          -                      

Beginning Fund Balance -

Ending Fund Balance -

Notes:

(a)

(b) Revenues are from the SB1 funded Caltrans grant for an Express Bus Implementation Plan.

(c) Revenues are Measure J 28b funds and are a match for the SB1 grant.

(d) Expenditures are for the Express Bus Implentation Plan.

(e) Revenues are from Measure J 28b and expenses are for the San Pablo Ave. Corridor Plan led by ACTC.

(f) Revenues and expenses are for the now-completed High Capacity Transit Study.

Activity

Revenues and expenses are for those anticipated under the Student Bus Pass Program (Measure J 21b).

8C-5





DRAFT FINAL 
FY2019 DUES STRUCTURE 

 
 

WCCTAC Member Agency Percent Share 
Proposed  

FY 18 Dues 

City of El Cerrito 9.1% $47,049 

City of Hercules 9.1% $47,049 

City of Pinole 9.1% $47,049 

City of Richmond 27.2%        $141,147 

City of San Pablo 9.1% $47,049 

Contra Costa County 9.1% $47,049 

AC Transit 9.1% $47,049 

BART 9.1% $47,049 

WestCAT 9.1% $47,049 

  discount  ($14,560) 

WestCAT Subtotal  $32,489 

Total 100.0%       $455,932 

 
 
 
Recent Dues History 

For a Regular 9.1% Share Member: 

Fiscal Year Dues Amount 

FY 09-10 $42,772 

FY 10-11 $42,772 

FY 11-12 $42,722 

FY 12-13 $36,675 

FY 13-14 $25,482 

FY 14-15 $36,675 

FY 15-16 $36,675 

FY 16-17 $39,975 

FY 17-18 $42,772 

FY 18-19 $47,049 

8D-1



5-22



  
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: June 15, 2018 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: West Contra Costa County Express Bus Implementation Plan:  Contract 
Authorization   

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Adopt Resolution 2018-07 authorizing the Executive Director or his designee to execute a 
contract with Kimley-Horn for planning and engineering services to develop the West Contra 
Costa Express Bus Implementation Plan in a form approved by WCCTAC General Counsel. 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
WCCTAC received $639,456 in Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Program funds to 
develop an express bus implementation plan building off of the work completed in the West 
County High Capacity Transit Study.  The Board previously approved a local match which is 
comprised of a cash match of $46,827 in Measure J, 28b funds and in-kind staff time.   
 
Following a review of responses to WCCTAC’s Request for Proposals and interviews with two 
consulting teams, the WCCTAC Board authorized staff to negotiate with Kimley-Horn, the 
highest ranked team at its May 25, 2018 Meeting.  Staff is now requesting that the Board 
adopt Resolution 2018-07 authorizing the Executive Director or designee to execute a 
consulting services agreement for the proposed scope of work with a not to exceed dollar 
amount and in a form approved by WCCTAC General Counsel.  The resolution, revised draft 
scope of work and WCCTAC’s standard consulting contract will be provided separately. 
 
 
Attachments: 
A. Resolution 2018-07 (to be provided separately) 
B. Revised Scope of Work (to be provided separately) 
C. WCCTAC Standard Consulting Contract (to be provided separately) 

 

9-1





 
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL  
 

 AUDITING SERVICES 
 

RFP No. 18-02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Response due by 
Noon, July 27, 2018 

 
 
 

10-1



WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WCCTAC) 
 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 
 

I. INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 3 

 

II.  NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED ............................................................................... 4 

 

III.  DESCRIPTION OF WCCTAC  ........................................................................................ 6 

 

IV.  SCHEDULE .................................................................................................................. 7 

 

V.   ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR ...................................................... 8 

 

VI.  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................... 8 

 

VII.  EVALUATION PROCESS ............................................................................................. 12 

 

VIII.  MANNER OF PAYMENT ............................................................................................ 13 

 

IX. APPENDICES…………………………………………………………………………………………………………14 

 

10-2



WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WCCTAC)  
 
 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
A. General Information 
  

The West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (hereinafter "WCCTAC") is 
issuing this Request for Proposals (RFP) from qualified firms of certified public 
accountants to audit its basic financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2018, with the option of extending the contract for each of the four subsequent fiscal 
years.  These audits are to be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General Accounting Office's 
(GAO) Government Auditing Standards, and U.S. Office of Management, Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments.  
 
Any inquiries concerning the request for proposal should be addressed to the WCCTAC’s 
Executive Director, John Nemeth at (510) 210-5933 or jnemeth@wcctac.org.  Any 
responses to inquiries during the proposal process will be shared with all interested 
firms.   

 
To be considered, an original and four copies of the proposal must be received by 
WCCTAC by noon on July 27, 2018 at its offices at 6333 Potrero Avenue, Suite 100, El 
Cerrito, California.  Proposals arriving after the deadline will not be accepted.  The 
Authority reserves the right to reject any proposals submitted which are deemed non-
responsive to the proposal requirements as outlined in Section VI of this RFP. 

 
Proposals will be evaluated by a review committee chaired by the WCCTAC Executive 
Director. Oral interviews with the committee for finalists, if needed, are scheduled for 
August 8, 2018.  The process is described in more detail in Section VII of this RFP. 

 
B. Term of Engagement 
 

A five-year engagement is contemplated, subject to annual renewal based on the review 
and recommendation of the WCCTAC Executive Director and approval of the WCCTAC 
Board.   

 

10-3

mailto:jnemeth@wcctac.org


II. NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED 
 
A. General 
 

WCCTAC is soliciting the services of qualified firms of certified public accountants to 
audit its financial statements, perform an audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, 
with the option of extending the contract for each of the four subsequent fiscal years. 
These audits are to be performed in accordance with the provisions contained in this 
RFP.   

 
B. Scope of Work to be Performed 
 

WCCTAC desires the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of its basic 
financial statements and combining financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles.   

 
C. Auditing Standards to be Followed 
 

To meet the requirements of this RFP, the audit shall be performed in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants, the standards for financial audits set forth in the U.S. General 
Accounting Office's Government Auditing Standards and the provisions of U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments. 

 
D. Reports to be Issued 
 

Following the completion of the audit of the financial statements, the auditor shall 
issue: 

 
1. A report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. 
 

2. A report on the internal control structure based on the auditor's understanding of 
the control structure and assessment of control risk. 

 
3. A management report with recommendations for improving operations. 

 
 

E. Special Considerations 
 
1. All documents related to the audit must be retained, at the auditor's expense, for a 

minimum of five (5) years, unless the firm is notified in writing by WCCTAC of the 
need to extend the retention period.  The auditor will be required to make 
documents available. 

10-4



 
2. In addition, the firm shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor auditors 

and allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to matters of 
continuing accounting significance. 

 

III. DESCRIPTION OF WCCTAC 
 

WCCTAC is one of four Regional Transportation Planning Committees (RTPCs) in Contra 
Costa County. The Regional Transportation Planning Committees were created to 
manage the 1988 Measure C 1/2 cent transportation sales tax projects and programs, 
and its Extension, Measure J, approved by Contra Costa voters in 2004. 

In addition to managing revenues from Measures J, WCCTAC also administers the sub-
regional transportation mitigation fee program (STMP), and participates in defining and 
implementing policies, programs and projects to improve local and regional 
transportation and air quality. 

WCCTAC is governed by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the following 
member agencies: the cities of El Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond, San Pablo; Contra 
Costa County; and the transit providers, AC Transit, BART, and WestCAT. 

  

IV. SCHEDULE 
 
A. Proposal Calendar 
 

The following is a list of key dates up to and including the date contract is to be finalized. 
 

Request for Proposals Issued    June 15, 2018 

Due Date for Proposals    July 27, 2018 (noon) 

Oral interviews (if necessary)    August 8, 2018 

Contract negotiations                                                      August, Sept. 2018 

WCCTAC Board contract approval   September 28, 2018 

Notice to Proceed  September 28, 2018 

 
B.   Proposed Schedule for the Fiscal Year Audit 
 

The Authority is seeking the auditor to complete the following milestones in Year One 
by the dates indicated on the following page: 
 
 
 
 

10-5



Milestone Due Date 

Initial Fieldwork Completed (Expect 2-3 weeks in Year 1) By October 31, 2018  

Schedules:  The auditor shall provide  
WCCTAC with a list of all schedules and confirmations to be 
prepared by WCCTAC. 

By October 31, 2018  

Final Fieldwork:  WCCTAC expects the same audit staff that 
performed the initial fieldwork to perform the final audit work, 
whenever possible. 

Should begin in 
November, 2018 

Draft Fiscal Audit and Management Letter:  To be reviewed by 
WCCTAC staff 

Should be submitted no 
later than December 14, 
2018  

Submitted Final Draft of Financial Statements and 
Management Report following WCCTAC Review 

December 14, 2018  

WCCTAC completed review and approval of draft Fiscal Audit 
and Management Letter 

January 5, 2019  

Provision of printed reports (22 bound Audit Reports) February 13, 2019  

WCCTAC Board review and approval of audit   February 22, 2019   

 
 
C.   Report Preparation  
 

The auditor will describe and prepare the initial draft of the fiscal audit. Final report 
preparation, editing, and printing shall be the responsibility of the auditor.   

 

V. ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR   
 

WCCTAC staff, and its consultants as necessary, will be available during the audit to 
assist the firm by providing information, documentation and explanations.   

 
A conference room can be made available for audit work, if desired, except on certain 
occasions when the room is used for meetings.  This space has access to the agencies 
wireless internet service and a photocopying / scanning machine. 

  

10-6



VI. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

All inquiries concerning the request for proposals should be made to John Nemeth 
Executive Director, West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee.  He can be 
reached at (510) 299-3084. When he is unavailable, firms can contact Paula Troy 
(contract accountant) at 925-969-0841 x216 or Valerie Jenkins (Administrative Assistant) 
at 510-210-5931.   

 
A. General Requirements 
 

Receipt of the following material is required by noon, July 27, 2018 for a proposing firm 
to be considered: 
 
1. An original proposal (so marked) and four copies. 
 
2. The proposal should include: 

 
a. Title page showing “RFP No. 11-02 for Auditing Services, Proposed by (firm 

name, address, and telephone number).” 
b. Table of contents 
c. Transmittal letter (signed) stating an understanding of the work to be done, the 

commitment to perform the work within the time period, a statement why the 
firm believes it to be the best qualified to perform the engagement and a 
statement that the proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for 90 days. 

d. Technical proposal which follows the order set forth in Section VI.B below of this 
RFP. 

 
B. Technical Proposal Outline 
 

The purpose of the Technical Proposal is to demonstrate the qualifications, competence 
and capacity of the firms seeking to undertake an independent audit of WCCTAC in 
conformity with the requirements of this RFP.  As such, the substance of proposals will 
carry more weight than their form or manner of presentation.  The Technical Proposal 
should demonstrate the qualifications of the firm and of the particular staff to be 
assigned to this engagement.  It should also specify an audit approach that will meet the 
RFP requirements.  The Technical Proposal should be no longer than 10 pages in 12 
point font.  Please follow the outline below.  Additional information can be included in 
an appendix to your proposal. 

 
1.   Independence 
 

The firm should provide an affirmative statement that it is independent of the 
Authority as defined by generally accepted auditing standards/the U.S. General 
Accounting Office's Government Auditing Standards. 

10-7



 
2.   License to Practice in California 
 

An affirmative statement should be included that the firm and all assigned key 
professional staff are properly licensed to practice in the State of California. 

 
3.   Firm Qualifications and Experience 
 

This includes the breadth and depth of the firm's experience in reviewing the 
financial activities of local government entities.  Specific description of experiences 
with local transportation authorities, Joint Powers Agencies, or similar agencies in 
California are desirable.   

 
4.   Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience 
 

Identify the principal supervisory and management staff, including engagement 
partners, managers, other supervisors and staff, who would be assigned to the 
engagement.  Provide information on the government auditing experience of each 
person.. 
 
Provide as much information as possible regarding the number, qualifications, 
experience and training, including relevant continuing professional education, of the 
specific staff to be assigned to this engagement.  Indicate how the quality of staff 
over the term of the agreement will be assured. 

 
5.   Specific Audit Approach 
 

The proposal should set forth a detailed work plan, including an explanation of the 
audit methodology to be followed, to perform the services required in Section II of 
this request for proposal.  Proposers will be required to provide the following 
information about their approach: 
 
a. Level of staff and number of hours to be assigned to each proposed segment of 

the engagement; 
 
b. Extent of use of computer assisted auditing techniques in the engagement; 
 
c. Approach to be taken to gain and document an understanding of WCCTAC’s 

internal control structure; 
 
d. Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject to  
       audit test work; 
 
e. Approach to be taken in drawing audit samples for purposes of tests of 

10-8



compliance; 
 
f. Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the engagement; 
 

g. Approach to be taken while working with the WCCGTAC Board. 
 

6.   Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems 
 

The proposal should identify and describe any anticipated potential audit problems, 
the firm's approach to resolving them and any special assistance that will be 
requested.  Specifically summarize future GASB rules that are required to be 
implemented and the impact to the Authority, if any. 

 
7.   Disclosure of Lawsuits 
 

a. The proposal should state any potential, current or past lawsuits filed against 
them, including the outcome, over the past 5 years. 

b. The proposal should state federal or state desk reviews or field reviews of its 
audits during the past three (3) years.  In addition, the proposal shall provide 
information on the circumstances and status of any disciplinary action taken or 
pending against the firm during the past three (3) years with state regulatory 
bodies or professional organizations.  

 
8.   References 
 

a. Please provide a list of three current clients that we may contact. 
b. Please provide a list of three prior clients over the last two years that we may 

contact.   
 

C. Fee Information 
 

Evaluation is to be based on professional qualifications.  Fees are a secondary 
consideration. Cost will only become a factor in the selection process if the Review 
Committee determines that there is a relatively close ranking between two or more 
firms.   

 
  

10-9



The fee information should include the following information: 
 

• the cost to prepare the audit of WCCTAC’s basic financial statements and the 
management letter relating to WCCTAC’s internal controls; 
 

• the cost of travel or out-of-pocket expenses that will be sought as 
reimbursable expenses.  

 

VII. EVALUATION PROCESS 
 
A. Review Committee 
 

WCCTAC will establish a review committee to evaluate proposals and interview three 
final candidates.  The committee will make a recommendation of one firm to the 
Authority for their consideration and approval.  The committee will be chaired by the 
WCCTAC Executive Director.    

 
B. Process 
 

All proposals must be submitted to WCCTAC by July 27, 2018 at noon. Late proposals 
will not be considered under any circumstances.  The review committee will evaluate 
the proposals, and either recommend the most qualified firm or selected up to three 
firms as finalists.   
 
On August 8, 2018 interviews will be conducted by the review committee of the finalists 
if necessary.  We would anticipate the WCCTAC Board’s approval of the contract on 
September 28, 2018. 

 
  

10-10



C. Evaluation Criteria 
 

All proposals will be evaluated in the following order: 
 

1. Meeting minimum proposal requirements 
2. Technical Qualifications 
3. Fee Information 

 
VIII. MANNER OF PAYMENT 
 

Progress payments will be made on a time and materials basis during the course of the 
engagement in accordance with the firm's fee information and out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred.  

 

IX. APPENDICES 
 

 Please see our website www.wcctac.org for a copy of this RFP and the following 
appendices: 

 
A. FY 2017/18 Budget 

 
 
 

10-11

http://www.wcctac.org/




  

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 

 

 

June 15, 2018 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Richmond Ferry Service Details 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Staff recommends that the WCCTAC Board consider the proposed service details presented by 
WETA and described in this staff report and forward its recommendation to the CCTA Board.  
 
BACKGROUND  
The Richmond Ferry is scheduled to open for service at the end of October, 2018.  It will be 
operated by the Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA) and funded with Measure J 
22b dollars.  A 2015 Cooperative Agreement between WETA and CCTA formally established 
Measure J as a funding source and also spelled out the roles and responsibilities of the two 
parties.  This agreement in included for reference as Attachment D. 
 
One of WETA’s obligations is to work cooperatively with WCCTAC and CCTA to establish 
services levels, a schedule, fares, and a marketing plan for the new service.  In recent weeks, 
WCCTAC, CCTA and Richmond City staff have been discussing these service details with WETA.  
At a staff level, these organizations have reached a general consensus about these proposed 
service details, which are described below.  
 
Staff from WETA will give a presentation that provides an update on the status of the ferry 
project and discusses the proposed services details.   
 
SERVICE DETAILS 
 
Service Level & Schedule 
The Cooperative Agreement obligates WETA to provide at least three departures from 
Richmond to San Francisco in the morning and two reverse peak departures from San Francisco 
to Richmond in the morning.  It also requires four departures from San Francisco to Richmond 
in the evening and three reverse peak departures from Richmond to San Francisco in the 
evening.  The schedule proposed by WETA is similar to this requirement but includes four 
(rather than three) trips from Richmond to San Francisco in the morning.  The departure times 
for these 13 total runs are acceptable to the staff of the agencies that reviewed them.  
Moreover, WETA has very little operational flexibility to make changes.  The proposed schedule 
is included as Attachment A. 
 

11-1



 

It is not currently possible for WETA to provide greater service levels on weekdays given a lack 
of vessels.  More boats have been purchased but will not begin to be delivered until 2021.  
After 2021, the Richmond Ferry may be considered for additional weekday service depending 
on how it performs and how its capacity needs compare with other WETA services.  
 
There may be an opportunity for WETA to provide weekend ferry service prior to the 
acquisition of new vessels.  WCCTAC, CCTA and Richmond staff are all very supportive of this 
prospect.  It is WCCTAC and CCTA staff’s view that Regional Measure 3 funds (rather than 
Measure J funds) should be used for weekend service or any added weekday service.    
 
Fares 
Approximately 80% of the cost of the ferry service will be covered by Measure J 22bs funds.  
The remainder will be covered by fares.  Among the staff of the agencies discussing ferry 
service, there are varying perspectives about the appropriate start-up fare level.  The staff of 
the agencies involved ultimately settled on a proposed one-way adult fare of $6.75 if a Clipper 
card is used.  Discounts for youth, seniors, and school groups are proposed, with fare levels 
scaled off of the adult base fare.  A chart showing the proposed fares at start-up is included as 
Attachment B. 
 
At the ferry terminal there will be approximately 350 parking spaces, shared with the adjacent 
Craneway Pavilion, available to ferry riders.  The current proposal is for these parking spaces to 
be free at the start of service.  The lot will be monitored and if it approaches capacity, parking 
charges will be considered. 
 
Marketing Plan 
The development of the ferry’s Marketing Plan involved participants from WETA, the City of 
Richmond, WCCTAC, CCTA, Rosie the Riveter Trust, and the National Park Service.  WCCTAC, 
CCTA and City of Richmond staff do not have any concerns with this plan.  It is included as 
Attachment C.  Note the fares proposed in the Marketing Plan have been replaced with the 
fares proposed in Attachment B. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
If the service details described in this staff report are acceptable to the WCCTAC Board, 
WCCTAC staff will notify the CCTA Board via a letter.  CCTA staff are preparing to ask the CCTA 
Board for its concurrence at an upcoming meeting.  WETA is expected make a final 
determination about service details in the late summer.   
 
Attachments 
A:   Proposed Schedule 
B:   Proposed Fares 
C:   Marketing Plan 
D:   Cooperative Agreement  

11-2



11A-1



FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Adult $9.00 $9.30 $9.60 $9.90 $10.20 $10.50

Adult (Clipper Only) $6.75 $7.00 $7.20 $7.40 $7.70 $7.90

Youth (5-18) $4.50 $4.60 $4.80 $4.90 $5.10 $5.20

Senior (65+), Disabled $4.50 $4.60 $4.80 $4.90 $5.10 $5.20

School Groups $2.90 $3.00 $3.10 $3.20 $3.30 $3.40

Children (under 5) FREE FREE FREE FREE FREE FREE

PROPOSED RICHMOND FERRY FARES
STANDARD FARES - 6/8/18

11B-1





11C-1



11C-2



11C-3



11C-4



11C-5



11C-6



11C-7



11C-8



11C-9



11C-10



11C-11



11C-12



11C-13



11C-14



11C-15



11C-16



11C-17



11C-18



11C-19



11C-20



11C-21



11C-22



11C-23



11C-24



11C-25



11C-26



11C-27



11C-28





11D-1



11D-2



11D-3



11D-4



11D-5



11D-6



11D-7



11D-8



11D-9



11D-10



11D-11



11D-12



11D-13



11D-14



11D-15





 

 
 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contra Costa 

County 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 
 

 
 
May 29, 2018 
 
 
Mr. Randell Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

 
RE:  May WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  

 
Dear Randy: 

 
The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on May 25, 2018, took the following actions that may 
be of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Approved FY 19 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, for additional transportation 
for seniors and people with disabilities. 

2. Approved WCCTAC’s concurrence for an amendment to the 2016 Measure J 
Strategic Plan regarding expansion of a WestCAT bus facility.  

3. Authorized WCCTAC’s Executive Director, in consultation with WCCTAC’s legal 
counsel, to enter into negotiations to develop a West Contra Costa County Express 
Bus Implementation Plan with the top ranked firm, Kimley Horn, and then if 
unsuccessful, to negotiate with the second-ranked firm, WSP.  

4. Approved revised terms of compensation for WCCTAC Executive Director.  
 

Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

       
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 

cc:  Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN; Lisa  
       Bobadilla, SWAT 

15a-1





  

 
 

 
 
 
 
ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.  
 
ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission  
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP:  Active Transportation Program 
AV:  Autonomous Vehicle 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CIL: Center for Independent Living 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System  
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 

15b-1



                       

           

NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PASS: Program for Arterial System Synchronization 
PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities  
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PCC: Paratransit Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
STMP: Subregional Transportation Mitigation Plan 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
 

15b-2


	Acronym List Master-NEWjn
	Draft RFP for Audit
	marketing plan 6-6-18
	SDRMA - Resolution 18-05
	WCCTAC P11-18 Budget Report Monthly
	2019 DRAFT FInal Work Program2
	Draft Budget 19 - Summary
	Draft Final Budget 19 - Operations
	Draft Final Budget 19 - Other
	Draft Final Budget 19 - STMP
	Draft Final Budget 19 - TDM
	FY 18-19 Draft Final Dues
	Resolution 18-06 Work Program, Budget and Dues
	Staff Rpt - FY19 Work Program, Budget, Dues



